Legal and Governance

N\iddles@cﬁjgh

moving forward

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE SCRUTINY
PANEL

Date: Wednesday 24th March, 2021
Time: 10.30 am
Venue: Virtual Meeting

AGENDA

Please note: this is a virtual meeting.

The meeting will be live-streamed via the Council’s Youtube
channel at 10.30 am on Wednesday 24th March, 2021

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest.

3. Minutes - Economic Development, Environment and 3-6
Infrastructure Scrutiny Panel - 23 February 2021

4, Middlesbrough Regeneration Post Covid-19 Scrutiny Review - 7-14
Local Implementation Plan (LIP)
The Transport and Infrastructure Manager and Infrastructure
Programme Manager will be in attendance to provide an
overview of the Middlesbrough Local Implementation Plan
(LIP) and the plans for public consultation.
Recommendation: for Panel to determine whether further
information is required.
5. Middlesbrough Regeneration Post Covid-19 Scrutiny Review -
Update on High Streets Fund and Towns Fund

The Head of Economic Growth and Infrastructure will be in

Page 1


https://www.youtube.com/user/middlesbroughcouncil
https://www.youtube.com/user/middlesbroughcouncil

attendance to provide an update on Middlesbrough Council’s
successful bids for the High Streets Fund and Towns Fund.

Recommendation: for Panel to determine whether further
information is required.

6. Date of Next Meeting - 21 April 2021

7. Overview and Scrutiny Board Update

The Chair will provide a verbal update on matters considered
at the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 11
March 2021.

8. Any other urgent items which in the opinion of the Chair, may
be considered

Charlotte Benjamin
Director of Legal and Governance Services

Town Hall
Middlesbrough
Tuesday 16 March 2021

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors M Saunders (Chair), B Hubbard (Vice-Chair), R Arundale, D Branson,
D Coupe, T Furness, L Lewis, M Storey and S Walker

Assistance in accessing information
Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information

please contact Susan Lightwing, 01642 729712,
susan_lightwing@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 2



Agenda Item 3
Economic  Development, Environment  and 23 February 2021
Infrastructure Scrutiny Panel

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE SCRUTINY PANEL

A meeting of the Economic Development, Environment and Infrastructure Scrutiny Panel was held on
Tuesday 23 February 2021.

PRESENT: Councillors M Saunders (Chair), B Hubbard (Vice-Chair), R Arundale, D Branson,
D Coupe, T Furness, L Lewis, M Storey and S Walker

OFFICERS: S Lightwing, R Horniman, A Mace, G Robinson, Ward, S Bonner and J McNally

APOLOGIES FOR None.

ABSENCE:

20/42 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest received at this point in the meeting.

20/43 MINUTES - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
SCRUTINY PANEL - 20 JANUARY 2021

The minutes of the meeting of the Economic Development, Environment and Infrastructure
Scrutiny Panel held on 20 January 2021 were taken as read and approved as a correct
record.

20/44 REVIEW OF TREE POLICY

The Head of Environment Services, Senior Area Care Manager, and Operations Manager,
were in attendance to present the Council’'s updated draft Tree Policy which had been under
review since September 2020.

A copy of the draft policy had been circulated to Panel Members in advance of the meeting.
The policy set out the criteria for the inspection regime and Planning Considerations which
Middlesbrough Council would adopt in respect of those trees for which it had a legal
responsibility. The policy also explained how the Council would deal with complaints in
respect of those trees, detailed the legislation on which the policy criteria was based, and set
out how disputes in terms of complaint resolution would be dealt with.

The Senior Area Care Manager highlighted the proposed amendments to each section of the
Policy as follows:

Section 1: Planning Considerations had been added as planning matters often superseded
the Policy, for example if a site was earmarked for development.

Sections 6 and 21: the regulations had been updated to The Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2010.

Section 17: added clarity in terms of the inspection regime. A routine inspection regime was
in place but managers also inspected trees on an ad hoc basis when members of the public
raised concerns about trees.

Section 24: added clarity in terms of the structural engineer’s report that felling may be
considered if a tree was proven as a major contributor to serious structural damage to
buildings or infrastructure.

Section 26: a new section explaining that the Council would not fell or prune trees due to
falling leaves, blossom, fruit, sap or mildew. This was a seasonal occurrence that is
considered an inconvenience and not a nuisance.

Section 38: a change to the policy that vegetation beneath hedges may be left unmanaged.

Research proved that was better for wildlife than introducing artificial beetle banks as had
been the previous policy.

Page 3



23 February 2021

Section 46: the word “landowner” had been changed to “claimant” since it was not always the
landowner who made a claim.

Section 49: clarified that if an arborist’'s report was obtained it must be at the expense of the
claimant rather than the Council.

Section 52: updated to state that where consent was given, works could be undertaken, by a
suitably qualified contractor, with written agreement from the Council and at the complainant’s
expense.

Section 54: reworded for clarity to state: Where agreement has not been reached between
the resident and the Council Officer, the Executive Member for Environment may determine
that due to the specific circumstances a special case can be made, and may agree to works
being carried out which may fall outside of this policy guidance. The decision of the Executive
Member will be final in all such cases.

The following issues were raised by Panel Members:

In relation to the removal of hedgerows by housing developers, it was explained that the
Council would take guidance from the Town and Country Planning Act. All landscape
schemes would be provided by a developer prior to planning applications being approved.

Whilst there was currently a greater emphasis on tree planting by Middlesbrough Council and
the ideal scenario was that every tree felled would be replaced, the Officer was unable to
confirm that this was stipulated in the Policy but offered to seek clarification on that point.

In relation to residents providing proof of damage, it had always been a point of insurance law
whereby the Council would not assume or accept presumption of damage and it had to be
proven. However, Area Care Managers, would provide evidence for insurance purposes
where it was obvious that a tree was the cause of damage. For example, where a root was
emanating from a tree and had damaged a wall, that would be accepted as evidence and
there would be no requirement for a structural engineer’s report. It was more complicated
where there was indirect damage, for example, where a tree had the potential to cause
structural issues with property or buildings. Trees could remove the water from below the
foundations, if built on clay or gypsum, and cause shrinkage and subsidence. When the
gypsum or the clay rehydrated, the structure could lift and cause heave. Officers were not
qualified to determine whether this was a structural issue or indirect issue and therefore a
structural engineer’s report would be required.

Examples of issues raised by Members of the public with overgrown trees blocking light and
causing uneven pavements were shared and the Officer assured the Panel that each request
for remediation was considered in line with the Policy. In legislation there was no right to light
and the Council could not intervene. However, there were other options open to residents as
set out in Section 55 of the reviewed Policy.

With regard to conservation areas, an application had to be made to remove any trees and the
Council would consider whether they were worthy of protection or could be removed. A Tree
Preservation Order (TPO) could be put in place if needed. Without a TPO the owner was free
to remove the tree and there was no requirement to replace it. If authority was granted to
remove a tree which had a TPO, for example if it was diseased, then the owner was required
to replant another tree. The Council had no powers to insist that a tree was replaced just
because it was in a conservation area.

In order to reduce many of the issues, trees were often hybridised or bred to reduce surface
rooting for example. The Council carefully considered the space that trees would be planted
in to ensure that it was appropriate for the type of tree. Care was taken to choose appropriate
species of trees for roadside planting. If there was any root displacement from trees, the
Highways Section would contact the Area Care Manager of that area. A decision will be made
on site whether a tree root could be cut and the tree remain safe. If not, the footpath would be
constructed over it to ensure there was no tripping hazard.

The trees selected for the Mayor’s tree planting initiative were British Natives that were good
at growing in the conditions particularly in this part of the country. Each tree came with a
barcode that described the tree’s potential growth rate, adult size, planting conditions

Page 4



20/45

23 February 2021

required, and aspect from that tree and there were several to choose from. The small trees
were the Hawthorne and the Rowan, medium trees were Limes and Hazels and the large
trees were Hornbeams, Oaks and Beech Trees. Residents could choose the most suitable
tree type for their garden and advice was provided about growth and height etc.

The Chair thanked Officers for attending the meeting, presenting the reviewed Tree Policy and
answering queries.

AGREED that the information provided was received and noted.

REVIEW OF PEST CONTROL - DRAFT FINAL REPORT

A copy of the Draft Final Report on Pest Control had been circulated with the agenda.
Members provided recommendations for inclusion in the Final Report.

The Head of Environment Services informed the Panel that a desktop exercise had been
undertaken which indicated that offering a free pest control service to residents could only
operate at a cost to the Council. However, the Service would also investigate chargeable
services offered to residents by other Local Authorities.

AGREED that the:

1. Following conclusions were approved:

TERM OF REFERENCE A — To examine the Pest Control Services currently offered
by Middlesbrough Council including the resources required to run the service and
income achieved.

The Council has 70 commercial contracts across Middlesbrough which generates
approximately £43K per annum. The Council also has a joint contract with Durham
County Council for Thirteen Group and the income from this contract is approximately
£95K. The income achieved from the Thirteen contract covers the Council's costs in
terms of running the service.

TERM OF REFERENCE B - To establish the range and cost of pest control services
provided by other Tees Valley Councils and local private operators.

The costs of pest control services offered by the Tees Valley Councils varies, ranging
from a free service up to £83, depending on the type of pests and number of visits
required. Commercial Operators’ fees are similarly varied and appear generally more
expensive.

TERM OF REFERENCE C - To consider whether expanding Middlesbrough
Council’s pest control services could provide an additional income stream to the
Council.

Unlike the other four Tees Valley Authorities, Middlesbrough Council does not currently
offer any pest control services to private residents. Anecdotal evidence gathered
indicates that there is an increasing rodent problem in Middlesbrough. However, as the
Council does not record service requests for pest control services from private residents, it
is difficult to ascertain the extent of the problem or the likelihood of take-up of any such
Council service by residents.

2. Following recommendations were approved:
A) Consideration is given to Middlesbrough Council offering a low cost Pest Control
Service to residential properties and whether this would provide an additional income

stream to the service area.

B) Investigate whether an amount could be included within the Council Tax charge to
provide a pest control service to private residents without any additional fee.

C) Promote educational messages about good house-keeping to prevent vermin

Page 5



20/46

20/47

20/48

23 February 2021
infestations through the LoveMiddlesbrough magazine.

3. Final Report on Pest Control would be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Board for
consideration.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 24 MARCH 2021

The next meeting of the Economic Development, Environment and Infrastructure Scrutiny
Panel would be held on Wednesday 24 March 2021.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD UPDATE

The Vice Chair provided a verbal update on items considered at the Overview and Scrutiny
Board meetings held on 27 and 29 January and 11 February 2021.

ANY OTHER URGENT ITEMS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, MAY BE
CONSIDERED

Work Programme

Members suggested topics for the Panel's future Work Programme which included the
Freeport, Middlehaven Masterplan and an update on the CityFibre programme.

Page 6



Middlesbrough

Local Implementation Plan

o
jabl
Q
@D
\l

Overview and Consultation plan

Craig Cowley - Transport & Infrastructure Manager
Chris Orr - Infrastructure Programme Manager

¥ way| epuaby

middlesbrough.gov.uk



What is the LIP and why are we doing
this?

Replaces Local Transport Plan
Statutory requirement for all Highway Authorities

Sets out the Council’s transport ambitions,
objectives and goals

Improves chances of securing future funding
« Engages stakeholders to shape transport policy

gabgd

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesfmgh



Strategic Transport Plan Local Implementation Plan
(TVCA) (MBC)

This will support the aims of the STP by making
Investment Plans Key Outcomes local improvements to contribute toward the goals.

Social Opportunity

Key drivers are:

National Rail

. e Mayors Vision
;E:J,E‘;&*ﬁﬁ e |Investment Prospectus
8 isure opportunifies: .
. SR e Housing Local Plan
ajor Roads
e Network Management Duty
Economic Grout J Tran_sport Asset_ Manggement Plan
Connecting e Medium Term Financial Plan
Economic
Centres
AY) » _ Key components focussed upon:
Q Eocmomie Plan snd e
% _ e el B Reduce the number and severity of casualties on the Borough's highway network
giI:IBOSCKIng Key Authorities.
© B Minimise congestion and manage traffic flow on the highway network
Environmental Protecion & B Improve highway network reliability and resilience
Sourmeys B Improve local air quality
Addressing the impact of
the transpart network: on N N . . .. . .
oot gt B Remove transport as a barrier to accessing jobs, education and training, leisure and retail
Deliver Social Lﬁﬁ';mt;;'ﬁ*éﬁ? iti
Equity and carbon emissions and opportunltles
Protect and detrimentsl impacts on
Egcﬁgﬁﬁg‘l:t the natural and built

enmvironment.

B Provide targeted interventions and measures to assist mode shift and allow highway users to
make informed travel choices
Out to public consultation — 20/11/2019 close

middlesbrough.gov.uk

Middlesmjgh



User Hierarchy

Congestion is one of the major causes of economic decline, as the movement of people and

goods is disrupted.

Hierarchy of need

PEDESTRIAN 5
CYCLISTS
PUBLIC TRANSPORT

FREIGHT /GOODS

VPRI\MTECAR

aon

middlesbrough.gov.uk

Building more vehicular infrastructure for cars is not
sustainable and is only achievable at the expense of
public space.

This does not mean that vehicular improvements will be
ceased, but will ensure a more holistic approach is adopted
for everyone.

All schemes will consider highway users in a priority order
to ensure that sustainability is engrained within projects.
This will ensure that the Council:

* Meets sustainability targets

* Meets road safety targets

* Meets economic growth targets
* Improves accessibility for all

* Helps behavioural change

Midd_lr?s%gh



Targets and Objectives

e e

Redusctica in

the incidaernsce

and sewerity of
casualties on thee
Borcughs Righway
Mebwacric

= Comoeestion
rmaroge troaffic
=

Irnproase hig by
=1 network reficbilioy
and resiliemcs

Imcreasad
- public tronsport
Potromoege

Enswurs o
structural Fo |Iur-e-s.

TT obed

= Mewecrbs, amnd
improwsed asset
oondition

" lrnproawe local air
aruality

- A meore aeoessi e
transport network

B Fewwer pecmle

urve rmployed

hiore businesses
- registen=d imn
hliddleshrough

middlesbrough.gov.uk

Road casualty
ot

Horerage wehicle
delays mmonibored
across the network

O perator
PO e

Obsaervation — mo
infrastructurs
Failures_ amd
arssaat conditiom
FUWEY NG

s quality
Mo ritori o
OEsesSITeErvis

Josrmrey Hnnes

PAiddlesbrowgh
Council busiress
register

See graph in
Suppenaisx 1.1

See graphs in
Auppendis 1.2

See graphs in
Appendix 1.3

F NG, S0

s Fowarmeys
1,05 &80
rauir jourmeys
2018190

See graphs in
Auppercise 1.4

O Fihres in
structures

See graph in
Sppendix 1.5 fior
e e == T I =]

Al mrvonibosrec]

pollutants beloww

objective leweals
See graph in
Auppendis 1.5

See graph in
Appmendise 17

See graph in
Appendix 1.8

See graph in
appeaencix 1.9

Feduace tobal

o rrybeer o
cosualties, beomsad
=rnoa thirees—year
MrCesing Ores e

- 250 incidents by
2025

& redwcticn in the
Eeak Flows armnd

congestion 3%, and
resdincesa bomgewiiow

& reduwcticn in the

arnd periodd

Inmcrecse by 19

O Foibures, aned
reducticn in ned
rated asset

Al ronitored
pollutants Below
orbjective lewels

JSouarmey thmes.
by all mosdes toe
decreoase

Reductiom am

the leweals of
wrven el et i,
PAiddlesbrowogh

Increase in the
LT e
registered

busimess.es im
PAicddlesbrowgh

=lncrecase in trofhic fows

=Increase in num ber of wolnerokle
rosced wrsers

- Constraoints om copital and rewvenue
Fording

= lnocrease in troffic flows
- Comstroints omn copital Funding

=lncrecase in trofhic fows
- Comstroints omn copital Funding

- Car parking occessibility and cost

~Resittance bo priority Mmeasures on
ey rowurbes.

~FPoor accessibility o rewr
demeloprments

~Ergaging private sector operators

=Delays in delivering bAcddlesbrooogh
Raibway Staticon capacity
iMmprowenments

-Increase in traffic fows
- Comnstraoints om capibal Funding For
CpeCT Ty MO oS T ry s,

=lncrease in troffAc Fows

= Comnstraints on copital fuonding for
Copocity imp rosenme s

-Paoliticalfpublic resistarnce to
INfrastruchure improasaSrme s

=lmprowecd accessibility bo oo —
sustairnoikle rmvcdces of trosee]

-Poor public tronsport accassibility

=Car porking occessibility and cost

= Corysu | tortion O o ceseso]
infrastructure iMPprosements

-Poor public transport accessibility
-Emgaging privaote sector operators
- Comstroints om copital Funding

=Ecornombc cdecline

=Economic decline

Mlddleslﬁﬁjgh




Consultation Process

* Follow TVCA STP process

* 6 week consultation period

* Press releases

Predominantly on-line (Covid restrictions)
Council / TVCA websites

Statutory consultees

Local Stakeholders

Physical copies available publicly (Town Hall / Community
Centres etc)

« Potential to host drop in sessions (depending upon
restrictions in place)

o ZIP0ed o

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middles[%gh



Consultation Conclusion

« Analysis of survey responses

* Report to executive, with recommendations
Publish upon approval

Monitor data / statistics annually

cT gbed 4

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middles@(ﬁlgh



Thank You

T abed

Any Questions?

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middleslﬁgjgh



	Agenda
	3 Minutes - Economic Development, Environment and Infrastructure Scrutiny Panel - 23 February 2021
	4 Middlesbrough Regeneration Post Covid-19 Scrutiny Review - Local Implementation Plan (LIP)

